
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

July 11, 2017 
 

CALENDAR 
 

July 11 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
July 11 immediately 

following 

Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July  11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
July  12 3:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July 18 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
July 25 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July 25 immediately 
following 

Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

July  25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

C. MINUTES  - June 27, 2017 – Public Work Session 

  June 27, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
                   June 28, 2017 – Public Work Session 

 
  

D. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 
 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Extra Curricular - The Business Office seeks Board approval of extra-

curricular requests. 

  
 Insurance Update 

 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Board Policy 2623 - The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Board Policy 2623, Student Assessment, for initial consideration. 

 
 Board Policy 5460 - The administration presents proposed revisions to 

Board Policy 5460, Graduation Requirements, for initial consideration. 

 



BOARD AGENDA July 11, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Board Policy 5530- The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Board Policy 5530, Drug Prevention, for initial consideration. 

 
 Board Policy 8400 - The administration presents proposed revisions to 

Board Policy 8400, School Safety, for initial consideration. 
 

 Administrator Conflict of Interest– Elkhart Community School’s 

administrators disclose potential conflict of interest statements. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 
grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

 Presentation Review – The administration presents a review of the June 
28th Work Session presentation. 

 
I. PERSONNEL 

 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as 

recommended by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of 
the administration. 
 

J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience   
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
 

    



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

June 27, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – 1:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   

ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Dawn McGrath 
 Tony Gianesi Pam Melcher 
 Rob Haworth Kevin Scott 
 Levon Johnson Doug Thorne 
  Dee Wappes 

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard presentations on the following topics:  PRIDE (Persistence, 
Respectfulness, Initiative, Dependability and Efficiency) from Tony England, 
Assistant Superintendent of Student Services; Work Ethic Certification from 
Levon Johnson, Supervisor of Corporate/Community Partnerships; Northwest 
Evaluation Association (NWEA) end of year report from Dee Wappes, Director of 
Assessment & Data; Literacy Committee report and teacher evaluation and 
Professional Learning Communities report from Dawn McGrath, Deputy 
Superintendent.  Members of the operations team provided information related 
to proposed capital projects for the next four years.  Discussion was held on the 
following topics: crossing guards, new committees, Pre-K, ETHOS, the Elkhart 
Education Foundation’s Kickoff Classic, and proposed literacy promotions.  The 

Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:10 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
June 27, 2017 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 

 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 

Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 

Order 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

By unanimous action, the Board presented with honor, a delayed high 
school diploma to James Friend, a Korean War veteran who attended 

Elkhart High School, but left before graduation in order to serve in the 
U.S. Navy from August 1951 through April 1955.  Superintendent, 
Robert Haworth, recited The Promise and how Mr. Friend’s service gives 

us each the freedom of our career, college, and life choices.  On June 9, 
2017 a delayed high school diploma was also presented to Charles 
Weber, a World War II veteran who attended Elkhart High School, but 

left before graduation to serve in U.S. Navy from May 1944 through May 
1946.  (Codified File 1617-162) 
 

High School 
Diploma 

Presentations 

Cheryl Waggoner, director of human resources, introduced the following 
support staff employees who retired during the 2016-2017 school year 
and were in attendance, with number of years of employment with ECS 

listed in parenthesis: Patricia Goins (19), Ruth Iannarelli (22), Christine 
Sherry (30), Debra Simons (22), and Barbara Wolf (10).  Each retiree 
received a certificate of service and congratulations from Board 

members. 
 

Special 
Recognition 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  

June 13, 2017 – Public Work Session  
June 13, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
June 20, 2017 – Public Work Session 

 

Approval of 

Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$9,516,934.44 as shown on the June 27, 2017, claims listing.  (Codified 

File 1617-163)  In response to Board inquiry, Kevin Scott, Chief 
Financial Officer, gave further details of recent purchases from Tepe 
Sanitary Supply. 

Payment of 
Claims  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation a donation 
made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS) of 11 spotlights for the stage 

at West Side Middle School from Corey Elliott, Russ Abel, and Beth Wind 
of St. Joseph United Methodist Church. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – May 31, 
2017, and found it to be in order.  In response to Board inquiry, Mr. 
Scott, responded the first allocation of tax dollars have been received 

from the County. 
 

Financial 
Report 

Kevin Scott reported the following fund loan was made on May 31, 

2017: $118,000 from Bus Replacement Fund to Referendum Tax Levy 
Fund. 
 

Fund Loans 

By unanimous action, the Board approved extra-curricular purchase 
requests from West Side Middle School for the license for the production 
of ‘High School Musical’ in the amount of $758.20; and to purchase 

PRIDE t-shirts in the amount of $2,830.00. 
 

Extra-curricular 
Purchases 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund (Codified 

File 1617-164) 
 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved revisions to Board Policy 

1460.1 – Physical Examinations and Reports (Administrators), as initially 
presented at the June 13th regular meeting.   
 

Board Policy 

1460.1 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved revisions to Board Policy 5230 
– Late Arrival and Early Dismissal), as initially presented at the June 13th 
regular meeting.   

 

Board Policy 
5230 

By unanimous action, Board approved proposed revisions and waived 
second reading of Board Policy 3422.12S – Employees in Miscellaneous 

Positions Compensation Plan.  Doug Thorne, district counsel/chief of 
staff, clarified the requested change adds the 21st Century Community 
Education Program Manager position at Roosevelt.  In response to an 

inquiry, Mr. Thorne stated the program manager is aware the position is 
tied to grant funding. 
 

Board Policy 
3422.12S 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of a Wish You Well 
grant to the Wish You Well Foundation from Adult Education/Community 
Education for $10,000. (Codified File 1617-165) 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of a Title I grant 
to the Department of Education from the district for $3,513,690.51 
pending review of submission details. (Codified File 1617-165) 

Grant Approval 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the June 27, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1617-166) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 

Report 

Administrative appointment of the following four (4) certified staff 

members effective July 1, 2017: 
Stephanie Kimmerly - assistant principal at Roosevelt 
Jennifer Loupee - assistant principal at Woodland 

Kathy Mentz - supervisor, special education/Pre-K at PACE 
Tara White - director of Literacy at ESC 
 

Administrative 

Appointments 
 

Administrative transfers of the following four (4) certified staff 
members effective August 1, 2017:  

JeNeva Adams - district transition coordinator at ESC 

Keith Baker - assistant principal at Hawthorne 
Paula Grandison - assistant principal at Eastwood 
Chris Scalise - assistant principal at North Side 

 

Administrative 
Transfers 
 

Employment of the following three (3) certified staff members for 

the 2017-2018 school year:   
Kristin Durfey - language arts at West Side 
Evan French - special education at Central 

Tracey Weirich - special education at Central 
 

Certified 

Employment 

Retirement of certified staff member Brenda McOwen, intervention 

at Roosevelt, effective 6/21/17, with 16 years of service. 
 

Certified 

Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following five (5) certified staff members 

effective on the dates indicated: 
Kathleen Bertrand - math at North Side; 5/26/17 
Jacquelyn Fair - grade 4 at Beck, 5/26/17 

Troy Sausaman - physical education at Riverview, 5/26/17 
Alexis Valdez - grade 1 at Roosevelt, 6/13/17 
Kendra Weirich - kindergarten at Daly, 5/26/17 

 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Regular employment of the following two (2) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Gary McDaniels - lead electrician at Building Services, 6/23/17 
David Murray - business account manager at WVPE, 6/18/17 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees effective 

on dates indicated:  
Yesenia Alvarez- paraprofessional at Tipton, 6/21/17 
Sondia Branscomb - bus helper at Transportation, 6/26/17 

Tracey Weirich - secretary Central, 5/26/17 
 

Classified 

Resignations 
 



4 
 

Termination of classified employee, Rosa Miller-Stump, bus driver 
at Transportation, in accordance with Board Policy 3120.01S. 

 

Classified 
Termination 

 
Superintendent Haworth stated in response to Board inquiry, Cheryl 
Waggoner would be presenting a report on efforts to recruit male 

teachers in elementary education.  Ms. Waggoner reviewed the district’s 
recruiting efforts; national averages – stating ECS is above the national 
average of 14.2%; the downward trend in male teachers going into the 

field of education since 2012; and the downward trend in both males 
and females in education versus upward trend in other fields of study.  
Ms. Waggoner invited the Board to offer suggestions for additional ideas 

for recruitment. 
 

From the 
Superintendent 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:55 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 

 
 
  _____________________  ______________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

June 28, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – 1:00 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard an update on pathways and schools from Dawn McGrath, 
Deputy Superintendent.  An introduction to the Ford Next Generation Learning 
was presented by Cheryl Carrier, Executive Director and Rick Delano, Architect. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 3:20 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 











policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROGRAM 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 2623/page 1 of 1 
 
 
 

 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT 

 
The Board, in compliance with the law and rules of the State Board of Education, 
shall implement the Indiana Statewide Testing for Educational Progress - Plus 
(ISTEP+) statewide achievement test as required by the State Board of Education to 
assess student achievement and needs in English/language arts, mathematics, 
social studies, science, and other designated subjects in order to determine the 
achievement of students and to assist them in attaining Corporation and State 
Department goals.  All graduation examination requirements by the State Board of 
Education will be honored by the Corporation. 
 
Additionally, the Board shall administer any end of course exams as may be 
required by the State Board of Education.   
 
The Board shall comply with all assessments required to be administered by the 
State Board of Education. 
 
 
 
I.C. 20-32-2 
I.C. 20-32-8 
I.C. 20-32-8.5 
511 IAC 5 
511 IAC 6.2-3.1 
I.C. 20-32-2 et seq., 20-32-8 et seq. 
I.C. 20-32-8.5-2 
511 IAC 5-2-3 
511 IAC 6.2-3.1-3 
 
July 11, 2017 
 
© NEOLA 2012 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 1 of 7 
 
 
 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
High School Graduation 
 
In order to graduate from high school, a student shall 
 
 A. complete the number and type of credits in grades 9-12, except as 

otherwise provided in this policy, required by the Indiana State 
Board of Education,  

   
 B. be enrolled for at least seven (7) semesters in grades 9-12 and  
   
 C. demonstrate proficiency of the academic standards established by 

the Indiana State Board of Education and Elkhart Community 
Schools through satisfactory completion of any one of the following 
three (3) procedures: 

   
 1. The student achieves passing scores on applicable 

examinations required by State law and or the Indiana State 
Board as pre-requisites for graduation; 

   
 2. The student who does not achieve passing scores on required 

examinations may be eligible to graduate if the student does 
the following:   

   
 a. retakes the required examinations in each subject area 

in which the student has not achieved a passing score 
at least one (1) time every school year after the school 
year in which the student first takes the required 
examinations; 

   
 b. completes remediation opportunities provided to the 

student as outlined in Administrative Guideline 5460 
Section A(5)(2); 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 2 of 7 
 
 
   
 c. maintains a school attendance rate of at least 

ninety-five percent (95%) with excused absences not 
counting against the student’s attendance; 

   
 d. maintains at least a “C-” average in the courses 

comprising the credits specifically required by the 
Indiana State Board of Education; and 

   
 e. either 
   
 1) obtain a written recommendation from a teacher 

of the student in each subject area of the  
required examinations in which the student has 
not achieved a passing score.  In order for a 
recommendation to be valid,  

   
 a) the principal must concur with the 

teacher recommendation, and 
   
 b) the recommendation must be supported 

by documentation, including the 
completion of the Evidence-Based 
Waiver – Core-40 Diploma form or the 
Evidence-Based Waiver – Alternate 
Documentation or Special Education for 
General Diploma form, indicating the 
student has attained the academic 
standards in the subject area based upon 

   
 (1) tests other than the required 

examinations; or 
   
 (2) classroom work; or 
   
 2) Complete 
   
 a) the course and credit requirements for a 

general diploma, including the career 
academic sequence; 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 3 of 7 
 
 
   
 b) a workforce readiness assessment; and 
   
 c) at least one (1) career exploration 

internship, cooperative education, or 
workforce credential recommended by the 
student’s school. 

   
 3. Where a student is a child with a disability (as defined in 

IC 20-35-1-2), the student’s case conference committee finds 
the following: 

   
 a.  The student’s teacher of record, in consultation with a 

teacher of the student in each subject area of the 
required examinations in which the student has not 
received a passing score, makes a written 
recommendation to the case conference committee.  In 
order for a recommendation to be valid: 

   
 1) the principal must concur with the teacher 

recommendation; and 
   
 2) the recommendation must be supported by 

documentation, including the completion of the 
Evidence-Based Waiver – Core-40 Diploma form 
or the Evidence-Based Waiver – Alternate 
Documentation or Special Education for General 
Diploma form, indicating the student has 
attained the academic standards in the subject 
area based upon 

   
 a) tests other than the required 

examinations; or 
   
 b) classroom work. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 4 of 7 
 
 
   
 b. The student meets all of the following requirements: 
   
 1) retakes the  required examinations in each 

subject area in which the student has not 
achieved a passing score as often as required by 
the student’s individualized education program; 

   
 2) completes remediation opportunities provided to 

the student to the extent required by the 
student’s individualized education program; 

   
 3) maintains a school attendance rate of at least 

ninety-five percent (95%) to the extent required 
by the student’s individualized education 
program with excused absences not counting 
against the student’s attendance; 

   
 4) maintains at least a “C-” average in the courses 

comprising the credits specifically required for 
graduation by rule of the Indiana State Board of 
Education and Elkhart Community Schools. 

   
 D. Additional Requirements for Students with Disabilities 
   
  During the student’s annual case review held when a student with a 

disability is enrolled in 8th grade, the case conference committee 
shall review and discuss with the student’s parent (and the student, 
if appropriate): 

   
 1. The types of diplomas available for students to receive in the 

State of Indiana; 
   
 2. The course requirements for each type of diploma; and 
   
 3. Employment and career options for the student and the type 

of academic, technical, and vocational preparation necessary 
to achieve the employment or career. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 5 of 7 
 
 
   
  The student’s IEP must include the type of diploma the student will 

seek and courses which will allow the student to progress towards 
the diploma in a timely manner.  The Corporation shall not require 
students with disabilities to complete locally required credits that 
exceed State credit requirements to receive a diploma unless 
otherwise required as part of the student’s IEP. 

   
  Beginning in grade 9 and in addition to the annual case review, the 

student’s teacher of record shall communicate at least once each 
grading period with the student’s parent concerning the student’s 
progress towards the selected diploma.  If the parent requests a 
meeting with the teacher of record to discuss the student’s progress, 
the teacher must meet with the parent in a timely manner.  Such a 
meeting does not constitute a case conference committee meeting, 
and a request for such a meeting does not abrogate a parent’s right 
to call for a meeting of the case conference committee at any time. 

   
 E. Otherwise, satisfy all State and local graduation requirements. 
 
Early Graduation 
 
For students fulfilling all graduation requirements as established in Section 1 of this 
policy in less than seven (7) semesters, a waiver may be requested.  An application 
specifying the circumstances which make the waiver advisable will be submitted to 
the Superintendent of Schools for his review and approval. 
 
A student qualifying for early graduation by the end of grade eleven (11) is eligible 
for a state early graduation scholarship subject to the provisions of Indiana statutes.  
Any student requesting an early graduation may obtain information regarding the 
scholarship from the guidance department. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 6 of 7 
 
 
 
Granting Diplomas 
 
 A. Students enrolled in the Corporation shall have the opportunity to 

earn any type of State diploma approved by the Indiana State Board 
of Education. 

   
 AB. Transfers from Other Districts 
   
  Any student, who completes his/her final semester of attendance 

and has earned at least six (6) credits from an Elkhart high school 
during this time, may be granted a diploma from an Elkhart high 
school. That student must also complete all requirements for 
graduation from high school established by the State of Indiana as 
described in Section 1 of this policy.  The Superintendent may waive 
the requirement that the student earn six (6) credits from an Elkhart 
high school if that student has completed all requirements for 
graduation from high school established by the State of Indiana as 
described in Section 1 of this policy.  

   
 BC. Transfers within Elkhart Community Schools 
   
  Elkhart high schools will grant a diploma to any student who has 

been in attendance at Elkhart high schools for seven (7) semesters 
and has completed all other State and local requirements for 
graduation as described in Section 1 of this policy. 

   
 CD. Course Completion 
   
  Elkhart high schools will grant a Course Completion to a student 

who satisfies the requirements established in Section 1(A) and (B) of 
this policy, but who does not meet the academic standards 
established by the State of Indiana through satisfactory completion 
of any one (1) of the three (3) procedures established in Section 1(C) 
of this policy. 

   
 DE. Certificate of Completion 
   
  Upon the recommendation of the student’s teacher of record, 

Elkhart high schools will grant a Certificate of Completion to a child 
with a disability (as defined in IC 20-35-1-2) who is not eligible to 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 7 of 7 

receive a diploma or a Course Completion, but who has completed 
the four (4) year educational program as established through the 
student’s IEP. 

   
 EF. Credit for Courses Completed Before Students Enter Grade 9 
   
  Credit earned for high school equivalent courses taken before 

students enter grade 9 will be granted in a manner consistent with 
Indiana laws, the rules and regulations adopted by the Indiana State 
Board of Education, and the Elkhart Community Schools.  

   
 FG. Credit for Courses Completed More Than One (1) Time 
   
 1. A student may repeat a high school course in which credit 

has been earned.  Credit for a course required for graduation 
will only be granted one (1) time, and the highest grade 
earned will be used to calculate student’s GPA. 

   
 2. The student's transcript will show the course each time it was 

completed and the grade assigned for each completion. 
   
 3. Some courses may be taken for multiple credits with all 

credits contributing to the GPA (e.g. band, choir, etc.). 
 
 
I.C. 20-26-5-37 
I.C. 20-32-4-1 through 10 
I.C. 20-35-4-11 
511 IAC 6-7.1-4 through 7 
I.C. 20-32-4-1 to 10, 20-20-6, 20-35-4-11 
511 I.A.C 5-3-1 to 2, 6-7.1-4 through 7 
511 I.A.C 5-3-2  
511 I.A.C 6-7-6 
 
July 11, 2017 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5530/page 1 of 4 
 
 
 

DRUG PREVENTION 
 
 
The Board recognizes the misuse of drugs is a serious problem with legal, physical, 
and social implications for the entire school community. 
 
As the educational institution of this community, the schools will strive to prevent 
drug abuse and help drug abusers by educational, rather than punitive, means. 
 
For purposes of this policy, "drugs" shall mean: 
 
 A. all dangerous controlled substances as so designated and prohibited 

by Indiana statute; 
  
 B. any synthetic drug or derivative thereof defined as a controlled 

substance by Indiana statute; 
  
 C. all chemicals which release toxic vapors; 
  
 D. all alcoholic beverages; 
  
 E. tobacco and tobacco products; 
  
 F. any prescription or patent drug, except those for which permission 

to use in school has been granted pursuant to Board policy; 
  
 G. anabolic steroids; 
  
 H. any "look-alike" substances; 
  
 I. any other illegal substance so designated and prohibited by law. 
 
The Board prohibits the use, possession, concealment, or distribution of any drug 
and any drug-related paraphernalia at any time on Corporation property or at any 
school-related event.  It further establishes a drug-free zone within 1000 feet of any 
facility used by the Corporation for educational purposes. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5530/page 2 of 4 
 
 
 
The Superintendent shall prepare guidelines for the identification, elimination, and 
regulation of drug use in the schools.  Such guidelines shall: 
 
 A. emphasize the prevention of drug use; 
  
 B. provide for a comprehensive, age-appropriate, 

developmentally-based drug and alcohol education and prevention 
program which: 

  
 1. addresses the legal, social, psychological, and health 

consequences of drug and alcohol use; 
  
 2. provides information about effective techniques for resisting 

peer pressure to use illicit drugs and alcohol; 
  
 3. assists students to develop skills to make responsible 

decisions about substance abuse and other important health 
issues; 

  
 4. promotes positive emotional health, self-esteem, and respect 

for one's body; 
  
 5. meets the minimal objectives as stated in the essential 

performance objectives for health education as established by 
the State's Department of Education; 

  
 C. include a statement to students that the use of illicit drugs and the 

unlawful possession and use of alcohol is wrong and harmful; 
  
 D. provide standards of conduct that are applicable to all students 

which clearly prohibit, at a minimum, the unlawful possession, use, 
or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by students on school 
premises or as a part of any school activity; 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5530/page 3 of 4 
 
 
   
 E. include a clear statement that disciplinary sanctions, up to and 

including expulsion and referral for prosecution, will be imposed on 
students who violate the school standards of conduct and a 
description of those sanctions; 

  
 The sanctions may include, together with punitive action, voluntary 

referral to appropriate persons or agencies for screening and 
assessment.  Such referral may only be made to qualified and 
properly licensed individuals or programs. 

  
 F. provide information about any drug and alcohol counseling and 

rehabilitation and reentry programs available to students and 
provide procedures to direct students and their parents to the 
appropriate programs; 

  
 G. require all parents and students be given a copy of the standards of 

conduct regarding the unlawful possession, use, or distribution of 
illicit drugs and alcohol by students; 

  
 H. require the notification to parents and students that compliance 

with the standards of conduct is mandatory; 
  
 I. provide a biennial review of the School Corporation's program to 

determine its effectiveness and implement changes as needed and to 
ensure disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced; 

 
The Safe School Committee described in Board Policy 8400 shall be responsible for 
addressing the issue of drug use in schools and facilities operated by the 
Corporation and implementing the Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities 
Act. 
 
The Superintendent shall establish administrative guidelines necessary to 
implement this policy. 
 
 
I.C. 20-30-5-11 
I.C. 35-48-2-4 
I.C. 35-48-2-6 
I.C. 35-48-2-8 
I.C. 35-48-2-10 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5530/page 4 of 4 
I.C. 35-48-2-12 
20 U.S.C. 7101 et seq., The Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act (Title 
IV, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act) 
I.C. 20-30-5-11 
I.C. 35-41-1-26.3 
I.C. 35-48-2-4 
20 U.S.C. 3171 et seq., Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1986 
20 U.S.C. 3224A 
 
July 11, 2017 
 
 
© NEOLA 20122016 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8400/page 1 of 4 
 
 
 
 

SCHOOL SAFETY 
 
 
The Board of School Trustees is committed to maintaining a safe environment in all 
of the Corporation’s properties.  To that this end, in accordance with State law, each 
school within the Corporation shall establish a Safe School Committee, the 
composition of which shall be in accordance with the Superintendent’s guidelines. 
 
The Safe SchoolSchool Safety Committee shall be responsible for developing a plan 
for the school that addresses the following issues: 
 
 A. Unsafe conditions, crime prevention, school violence, bullying, and 

other issues that prevent the maintenance of a safe school. 
   
 B. Professional development needs for faculty and staff to implement 

methods that decrease problems identified above. 
   
 C. Methods to encourage involvement by the community and students, 

development of relationships between students and school faculty 
and staff, and use of problem solving teams. 

   
 D. Provide a copy of the floor plans for each building that clearly 

indicates each exit, the interior rooms and hallways, and the 
location of any hazardous materials located in the building to the 
local law enforcement agency and the fire departments that have 
jurisdiction over the school.  The Corporation shall not disclose any 
record or part of any record if the disclosure of which would have a 
reasonable likelihood of threatening public safety by compromising 
the Corporation’s security. 

 
In developing the school’s plan, the Safe SchoolSchool Safety Committee may seek 
input from representatives of the following: 
 
 A. local law enforcement; 
   
 B. the local Fire Marshall(s) or his/her designee(s); 
   
 C. emergency medical services; 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8400/page 2 of 4 
 
 
 
   
 D. building administrators; 
   
 E. the local emergency management service agency; 
   
 F. School Resource Officer(s). 
 
Safe School Committee’s Duty to Implement the Safe and Drug-Free Schools 
and Communities Act 
 
The Safe School Committee is responsible for implementing the Safe and Drug-Free 
Schools and Communities Act.  To ensure the Corporation remains compliant with 
Federal law, the Safe School Committee shall: 
 
 A. develop a drug-free school plan that: 
   
 1. requires each school to collect and report drug related 

activities in the school, including suspensions, expulsions, 
exclusions, police actions, or any other type of drug related 
behavior; and 

   
 2. addresses ways to eliminate illegal drugs and drug related 

behavior in schools; 
   
 B. oversee the implementation of the school plan; 
   
 C. oversee the implementation of the curriculum under I.C. 20-30-5-11 

concerning the effects that alcoholic beverages, tobacco, prescription 
drugs, and controlled substances have on the human body and 
society at large. 

 
Security Police Training 
 
In the case of a police officer who is employed by the School Corporation to provide 
security for the School Corporation, the Board shall require that the police officer 
receives training and education, approved by the State Board of Education, that will 
enable the police officer to appropriately deal with individuals with autism and 
Asperger’s syndrome. 
 
Persistently Dangerous Schools 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8400/page 3 of 4 
 
 
The Board recognizes that State and Federal law requires that the Corporation 
report annually incidents which meet the statutory definition of violent criminal 
offenses that occur in a school, on school grounds, on a school conveyance, or at a 
school-sponsored activity.  It is further understood that the State Department of 
Education will then use this data to determine whether or not a school is considered 
“persistently dangerous” as defined by State policy. 
 
Pursuant to the Board’s stated intent to provide a safe school environment, the 
school administrators are expected to respond appropriately to any and all violations 
of the Student Code of Conduct, especially those of a serious, violent nature.  In any 
year where the number of reportable incidents of violent criminal offenses in any 
school exceed the threshold number established in State policy, the Superintendent 
shall refer this to the Safe SchoolSchool Safety Committee so that a plan of corrective 
action can be developed and implemented in an effort to reduce the number of these 
incidents in the subsequence year. 
 
When developed, the Superintendent shall make a report to the Board about this 
plan of corrective action and shall recommend approval and adoption of it. 
 
In the unexpected event that the number of reportable incidents in three (3) 
consecutive school years exceeds the statutory threshold and the school is identified 
as persistently dangerous, students attending the school shall have the choice 
options as provided in Policy 5113.02 and AG 5113.02 by Federal and State law. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 8400/page 4 of 4 
 
 
 
 
In addition, the Superintendent shall meet with the School Safety Committee, 
discuss the school’s designation as a persistently dangerous school, and develop a 
plan of corrective action that can be implemented in an effort to reduce the number 
of these incidents in the subsequent year. 
 
Victims of Violent Crime 
 
The Board further recognizes that, despite the diligent efforts of school 
administrators and staff to provide a safe school environment, an individual student 
may be a victim of a violent crime in a school, on school grounds, on a school 
conveyance, or at a school-sponsored activity.  The parents of the eligible student 
shall have the choice options as provided by Federal and State law.In accordance 
with Federal and State law the parents of the eligible student shall have the choice 
options provided by Policy 5113.02 and AG 5113.02. 
 
 
I.C. 5-2-10.1-12  
I.C. 20-26-16  
I.C. 20-26-5-31  
I.C. 20-34-3-20-9 
I.C. 20-30-5-11 
Title IX, Section 9532 of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 
20 U.S.C. 7101 et seq., The Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act (Title 
IV, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act) 
I.C. 5-2-10.1-12, 20-26-16, 20-26-5-31, 20-34-3-20-9 
Title IX, Section 9532 of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 
 
 
July 11, 2017 
 
© NEOLA 20072016 














































	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session June 27 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting June 27 2017
	Minutes - Work Session June 28 2017
	Extra Curricular Purchase
	Board Policy 2623
	USTUDENT ASSESSMENT

	Board Policy 5460
	GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

	Board Policy 5530
	DRUG PREVENTION

	Board Policy 8400
	SCHOOL SAFETY

	Administrator Conflict of Interest
	Grants
	Conference Leave Report
	Personnel Report
	Personnel Report Addendum

